
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

   BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

November 21, 2024 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

CLOSED SESSION:

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Significant exposure

to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Gov. Code Section 54956.9 - One potential case.

OPEN SESSION:

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for October 17, 2024

B. Receive and Ratify the Check Warrant List

C. Approve Board Compensation for October 2024

D. Approve Murray attending CASA Winter Conference January 29-31 in Palm Springs

E. Approve Modifcation to the January 2025 Board meeting schedule

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through D.  

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through E. 

4:00 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:35 PM 

4:05 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


November 21,  2024 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

4. REVIEW OF THE GARBAGE AND REFUSE RATE FOR 2025, RESOLUTION 2024-2344 AND SET
PUBLIC HEARING FOR ORDINANCE NO. 196

Board to review the Marin Sanitary Service Rate Setting Report, Resolution 2024-2344,  Draft Ordinance
No. 196 and set a Public Hearing date.

5. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

2. Solar Project Update – verbal

3. Engineering Department Report – written

4. Operations Department Report – written

6. SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT NO. 3 BETWEEN LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
AND OPERATING ENGINEERS UNION LOCAL NO. 3

Board to review the Side letter of Agreement No. 3 between LGVSD and OE3.

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee,
Energy Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports

2. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Energy Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

3. NITZBERG
a. Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee
San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee,
FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

5:15 PM 

5:45 PM 

4:45 PM 

6:00 PM 

2



November 21,  2024 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

8. BOARD REQUESTS:

A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – verbal

9. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

10. ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS DECEMBER 5 AND DECEMBER 19, 2024 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before November 18,  2024 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for 
the Board Meeting of said Board to be held on November 21,  2024 at the District Office, located at 101 
Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: November 15, 2024 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to 
the meeting. Notification prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable disability-related 
modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services, to help ensure accessibility to this 

meeting. 

6:15 PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, President Patrick Richardson  Legal Counsel 

6:30  PM 

6:20 PM 

3



 

 
 

 

11/21/2024 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



 

 
 

 

11/21/2024 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

 Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 2 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



 

 

Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Teri Lerch, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
   (415) 526-1510; tlerch@lgvsd.org 

Mtg. Date: November 21, 2024 

Re: January 2025 Board Meeting Schedule Modification  

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action       Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable     X        . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Board approve cancelling the January 2, 2025  Board meeting. 

BACKGROUND  
The District Board Meetings are regularly scheduled on the first and third Thursday of each 
month. Occasionally, special meetings are scheduled, or Board Meetings need to be cancelled to 
accommodate scheduling conflicts. 
 
The first monthly meeting of 2025 falls on January 2, 2025.  Staff requests the cancelling of the 
January 2nd Board meeting due to the Holiday week scheduling. The next scheduled Board 
meeting is January 16, 2025. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 
 
PERSON TO BE NOTIFIED: 
Public notice in accordance with District Policy and as required under the Brown Act. 

Item Number_____3E________ 

GM Review   ______CP_________ 

 

24



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\MSS\ASR MSS Amendment and Rate 2025 and Set PH.docx Page 1 of 7 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: November 21, 2024 

Re: Review of Proposed Garbage and Refuse Rate Adjustment for 2025 and 
Proposed Third Amendment to Marin Sanitary Service Franchise Agreement and 
Set Public Hearing for Ordinance No.196. 

Item Type:   Consent   Action      X  Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. Review proposed Garbage and Refuse Rate Adjustment for 2025 and proposed Third 
Amendment to the Revised and Restated Exclusive Franchise Agreement to Collect, 
Transfer, Process, Market, and Dispose of Solid Waste, Recyclable and Organic Materials 
between the Marin Sanitary Service to comply with Senate Bill (SB) 1383 regulations. 
 

2. Adopt Resolution 2024-2344 approving the Third Amendment to the Revised and Restated 
Exclusive Franchise Agreement to Collect, Transfer, Process, Market, and Dispose of Solid 
Waste, Recyclable and Organic Materials. 
 

3. Set a public hearing for December 19, 2024, to allow for discussion and input from the public 
concerning the proposed rate increase to be adopted by Ordinance No. 196. A notice of the 
public hearing will be published in the Marin Independent Journal and posted on the District’s 
website. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
This report details the proposed 2025 rate adjustment necessary for Marin Sanitary Service 
(“MSS”) to provide refuse, recycling and organics/compost hauling and processing for customers 
(“ratepayers”) in the unincorporated areas of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) 
and the proposed Third Amendment to MSS Franchise Agreement amending Chapter 1 of Title 4 
of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District code. Rate payers include residential homeowners, 
apartment owners, commercial property owners, and other businesses and tenants. The 
proposed rate adjustment will increase rates by 3.63% over 2024 levels for all ratepayers. It 
includes adjustments based on an agreed-upon rate setting methodology the District has with 
Marin Sanitary Service. 
 
 

Item Number______4________ 

GM Review   _______CP_______ 

 

25

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\MSS\ASR MSS Amendment and Rate 2025 and Set PH.docx Page 2 of 7 

 
I. Franchise Agreement 

 
The District has a franchise agreement with MSS for refuse collection and recycling services. 
The District entered into a Revised and Restated Exclusive Franchise Agreement to Collect, 
Transfer, Process, Market, and Dispose of Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Organic Materials 
(Agreement) on February 28, 2013. The original term of the Agreement was from February 28, 
2013 through December 31, 2033. A provision for automatic annual extensions began at the 
end of calendar year 2014, allowing both parties to extend the agreement one calendar year 
unless 12 months written notice of either parties intent to terminate the annual extension was 
given. Both parties are satisfied with the agreement and no termination request has been made. 
 
The first amendment to the Franchise Agreement in 2019 substantially streamlined and 
simplified the annual rate adjustment methodology, setting rates based on set revenues due to 
MSS, which are escalated annually based on one simple index: the Water, Sewer, and Trash 
Collection, U.S. city average, Bureau of Labor Statistics ID CUSROOOOSEHG (WST) index. 
The index has increased 4.74% over the last twelve months and averaged 3.99% over the last 
10 years. 
 
A second amendment to the Franchise Agreement, adopted on February 17, 2022, provided for 
the District to work with MSS to comply with the State of California’s SB 1383 Short-Lived Climate 
Pollutants Reduction Act, regulating organics waste reduction in the landfill as described in more 
detail below. 
 
A third amendment to the Franchise Agreement is being recommended for adoption by staff, as 
described in further detail below. 
 
II. Environmental Initiatives and Goals  
 
While the original purpose of refuse service had to do with public health and safety around 
sanitation, it is increasingly geared more toward making progress on waste reduction and climate 
change goals, which are also forms of public health and safety. The State of California has 
adopted several pieces of legislation mandating significant reductions of waste hauled to the 
landfill, recognizing the embedded environmental impacts and greenhouse gas emissions 
associated with them.  
 
Compliance for AB 1826 was passed in October 2014 and set requirements for all businesses 
and multi-family complexes that meet certain criteria to arrange for organics recycling. 
 
SB 1383 was passed in September 2016 and took effect January 1, 2022, setting even more 
stringent requirements for these customers to divert organic waste from the landfill. Taken 
together, these two mandates represent the most significant change to the laws affecting the 
industry since AB 939 was passed in 1989. 
 
In summary, the overall industry is moving from “bringing garbage to the landfill” to “resource 
hauling” including transport to recyclers and re-users to find the next highest and best use with 

26



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\MSS\ASR MSS Amendment and Rate 2025 and Set PH.docx Page 3 of 7 

the landfill being the last option. MSS has been a leader in this movement, as they have invested 
in facilities and technologies to divert materials from the landfill, including the construction of the 
Marin Resource Recovery Center, Marin Recycling Center, and investments in the Food-2-Energy 
(F2E) program with Central Marin Sanitation Agency. 
 
III. Marin Sanitary Services and Programs 
 
MSS provides residential, commercial, and multi-family refuse services. In addition, MSS provides 
trash and recycling pick-up for the District’s facilities. MSS has a low-income rate assistance 
program for customers who meet the PG&E Care program eligibility requirements. 
 
Residential service includes single-family units and three or fewer units in a single structure. The 
District’s residential customers receive weekly trash, recycling, and organics/compost collection 
services. Residential customers also receive twice yearly residential curbside collections of up to 
14 additional bags/cans of yard waste, recycling, and/or garbage; and twice yearly residential on-
call collection of up to two large items each time. 
 
Commercial service includes all businesses and residential apartment buildings with four or more 
units. Commercial customers receive separate trash and recycling containers as well as 
cardboard pickup, and may choose from a variety of carts, bins, and commercial compactors. In 
addition, customers are offered the choice of two commercial organics diversion programs.  
 
Customers with significant amounts of pre-consumer food waste may participate in the F2E 
program. Commercial customers with post-consumer food waste, food soiled papers, and yard 
waste may participate in the commercial composting program. All commercial services can be 
picked up from one to six times per week.  
 
Multi-family buildings are classified as commercial customers since they are a business enterprise 
and operate differently than single family homes. They receive separate trash, recycling, and 
organics containers depending on the area available for can storage. MSS works with apartment 
managers and tenants to develop ‘green teams’ to increase recycling and composting at their 
complexes. 
 
Organics recycling services began in 2022 to meet SB 1383 compliance. MSS also provides 
compliance monitoring and inspection services, contamination monitoring, outreach and 
education, and reporting functions on behalf of the District. 
 
In addition, MSS does most of the outreach for the District in compliance with the State’s 
Mandatory Commercial Recycling and Mandatory Composting laws (AB 341 and AB 1826), which 
place requirements on businesses to recycle and compost, and also requires the District to 
provide for annual monitoring and notifications to non-compliant businesses. MSS has also 
assisted with an illegal dumping abatement program by responding to calls of illegal dumping 
along the roadways within the unincorporated portions of the District boundaries. As District staff 
receives complaints of illegal dumping, they notify MSS for collection. MSS remains responsive to 
staff requests to resolve the complaints. 
 

27



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\MSS\ASR MSS Amendment and Rate 2025 and Set PH.docx Page 4 of 7 

Several jurisdictions in Marin that have contracts with MSS and utilize a similar rate setting 
methodology have joined together as a Franchisors’ Group to share information and reduce 
costs: San Rafael, Larkspur, Ross, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Fairfax, San 
Anselmo, and the County of Marin, including areas within the Ross Valley Sanitary District 
boundaries. Rate Year 2025 will be the fifth year that the Towns of Fairfax and San Anselmo are 
included in the rate setting application. The Franchisors’ Group meets several times per year to 
oversee MSS’s operations, to review MSS’s rate proposals, and to supervise the work of the 
consultant conducting the rate review. 
 
IV. Rate Review and Methodology 
 
In accordance with the Agreement, MSS submitted an application for rate review, requesting an 
increase in service charges to be effective January 1, 2025 (Attachment A). The rate application 
was prepared in accordance with Exhibit B of the Agreement, using the Indexed Year Rate 
Revenue Requirement approach. The District retained R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (“R3”) as an 
independent consultant on behalf of the Franchisors’ group and the District, and R3 reviewed the 
rate application in accordance with the rate-setting methodology set forth in the Agreement. The 
rate review and proposed adjustments are contained in the R3 Report (Attachment B). 
 
Each agencies’ rate increase differs slightly from the overall rate increase as each agency is 
intrinsically different from one another; the type of services provided, the level of subscription, the 
ratio of residential to commercial and industrial customers, the terrain in which services are 
performed, disposal costs per capita, rate structures, and governmental fees. 
 
While the District has the second highest percentage increase within the Franchisors’ Group, 
the District’s comparable rates, as shown on the survey completed by R3, remain the lowest. 
The rate adjustments proposed for the seven agencies within the Marin Franchisors’ Group are 
included in the MSS Combined Service Area Rate Application. The proposed Rate Adjustments 
are summarized and shown below in Table 1. 
 

Table 1 
2025 Rate Increase By Agency 

 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 3.63% 

Town of Ross 3.61% 

County of Marin 3.61% 

City of San Rafael 2.92% 

Larkspur 3.34% 

Town of San Anselmo 4.44% 

Fairfax 3.53% 

 
R3 conducted a survey of comparable rates within the MSS Franchisor’s Group and other non-
MSS agencies within Marin as part of the rate review. It summarizes the survey data for 
residential 32-gallon cart weekly service with curbside recycling and organics pickup. Las Gallinas 
Valley Sanitary District rates are the lowest among the MSS franchise agencies and below the 
average cost of $57.18 for other non-MSS agencies. 
 

28



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\MSS\ASR MSS Amendment and Rate 2025 and Set PH.docx Page 5 of 7 

PROPOSED THIRD AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
Elimination of Customer-Owned Cans  
 
In accordance with the Agreement, MSS submitted during the 2025 rate application process a 
request to amend the Revised and Restated Exclusive Franchise Agreement to Collect, Transfer, 
Process, Market, and Dispose of Solid Waste, Recyclable and Organic Materials between the 
Marin Sanitary Service to comply with Senate Bill (SB) 1383 regulations (see Attachment A, 
Exhibit A and Exhibit B). MSS would like to amend the number of compostable material carts 
provided as part of bundled residential rate from one (1) up to two (2).  In addition, MSS will cease 
to empty customer-owned carts or remove compostable bags for residential customers.  This 
proposed change is in alignment with SB 1383 requirements and helps to ensure MSS staff can 
collect customer compostable materials without the additional risk of injury.  There is no rate 
impact to this proposed amendment change (see Attachment C for Resolution 2024-2344 and the 
Third Amendment changes to the Franchise Agreement). 
 
This amendment removes the ability of residents utilize their privately owned, non-MSS issued 
green carts or compostable bags for green waste.  Instead, customers will be allowed to request 
an additional green waste cart that will be provided by MSS for free and can be utilized as part of 
regular weekly collection.  This amendment ensures the District maintains compliance with SB 
1383 Short-Lived Climate Pollutants Reduction Act, which regulates the color of waste cans and 
prescribes that haulers can only collect organics waste from their issued cans. 
 
PROPOSED RATE ADJUSTMENT 
 
The recommended District proposed rate increase is 3.63%. This is less than the historical 10-
year average of 5.21%. Over the past ten years rate adjustments in our District have ranged from 
0.64% to 9.60%. Last year’s adjustment was 6.45%. 

 

 
 

29



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\MSS\ASR MSS Amendment and Rate 2025 and Set PH.docx Page 6 of 7 

 
Rate Payer Categories and Comparisons 
 
Based on the above recommendation, the cost for bundled services based on a 32-gallon 
residential landfill cart would be increased approximately $1.70 per month, from $46.76 to $48.46. 
Residential bundles service includes 1 landfill (garbage) cart, 1 organics cart, and 1 recycling cart.  
 
The cost of commercial service for a 3-yard landfill dumpster picked up once per week would be 
increased by approximately $24.59 per month, from $677.48 to $702.07. Recycling is included in 
all accounts. Businesses with a vigorous recycling program can reduce their regular container 
size or pickup schedule resulting in lower rates. 

 

 
 
As in previous years, staff is recommending that the rate adjustment be applied across the 
board to all residential, multi-family and commercial service accounts. Actual rates proposed for 
all services are provided in the draft ordinance (Attachment D, Appendix A, Exhibit C) . 
 
District residents and commercial customers will be notified of the hearing by publishing a notice of 
the public hearing in the Marin Independent Journal and posting on the District’s website. 
  
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Ordinance 194 – Refuse rates effective January 1, 2024 adopted March 21, 2024. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Attachment A contains the complete rate request. As shown, the 3.63% overall increase is 
applied to all customer types and service options. If approved, these rates are projected to satisfy 
the District’s contractual obligations to meet the MSS revenue requirement including franchise 
fees. 

30



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\MSS\ASR MSS Amendment and Rate 2025 and Set PH.docx Page 7 of 7 

 
Attachments: 
Attachment A Marin Sanitary Service’s 2025 Combined Rate Application Cover letter and 

Rate Sheet with Exhibit A and Exhibit B 

 

Attachment B Review of Marin Sanitary Service’s 2025 Rate Application by R3 

 

Attachment C Resolution 2024-2344 Adopting the Third Amendment to the Franchise 
Agreement 

 

Attachment D Draft Ordinance Amending Chapter 1, An Ordinance Regulating Garbage, 
Rubbish, Waste Matter and Refuse, and the Collection, Removal and Disposal 
Thereof, of Title 4 of the District Code, including proposed Schedule of Rates. 

31



Attachment A

32



33



34



Marin Sanitary Service
Combined Service Area Rate Application

COLLECTOR'S RATE REVENUE REQUIREMENT AND RATE ADJUSTMENT
INDEXED YEAR - RATE YEAR 2025

MSS Marin 

Service Area Franchisor's San Rafael Larkspur County San Anselmo LGVSD Fairfax Ross

 Total Group Total

Collector Operations 34,998,237       30,045,508       19,086,959       4,797,457         2,982,949         3,328,154         2,553,227         1,624,574         624,917             

Garbage Landfilling and Organics Processing 6,131,611          5,009,669         3,182,484         799,909             497,365             702,775             425,715             419,168             104,196             

Change in Law - SB 1383 Costs 410,618             352,291             224,558             57,789               35,974               38,968               26,761               19,360               7,209                 

Subtotal for Profit Calculation 41,540,466       35,407,468       22,494,001       5,655,155         3,516,288         4,069,896         3,005,703         2,063,101         736,322             

Collector Profit (90.5% Operating Ratio) 4,360,601          3,716,806         2,361,249         593,635             369,113             427,227             315,516             216,569             77,293               

Recyclable Materials Processing 1,236,512          1,040,348         660,900             166,116             103,287             123,835             88,407               72,329               21,638               

Interest 755,623             683,273             434,061             109,100             67,836               46,496               58,064               25,855               14,211               

Zero Waste Marin Fees 537,137             453,007             287,781             72,333               44,975               53,434               38,496               30,696               9,422                 

Franchise Fees 5,833,819          4,960,100         3,091,261         798,952             747,976             596,242             185,259             277,477             136,652             

Other Agency Fees 2,331,476          2,169,976         1,480,601         568,400             120,975             84,000               -                     77,500               -                     

Annual Rate Revenue Reconciliation 446,498             443,824             281,947             70,867               44,063               72,328               37,716               (69,654)              9,231                 

Extraordinary Item - Recycling Property Insurance 192,250             161,750             102,755             25,827               16,059               19,254               13,745               11,246               3,364                 

Total 2025 Rate Revenue Requirement 57,234,384       49,036,552       31,194,556       8,060,385         5,030,572         5,492,712         3,742,906         2,705,120         1,008,133         

Total 2024 Rate Revenue Requirement 55,420,353       47,548,034       30,308,192       7,799,684         4,855,288         5,259,405         3,611,849         2,612,914         973,020             

2025 Rate Revenue Adjustment 3.27% 3.13% 2.92% 3.34% 3.61% 4.44% 3.63% 3.53% 3.61%

35



36



37



 
  

 

Exhibit B 

  

Implementation Plan 
 
Messaging Plan 
  

Type Description Delivery Date 
Website updated Rationale and details on program change December 2024(once approved) 

Postcard mailed Rationale for program change January 2025 

Email campaign Program change details January 2025 

Social Media 
Campaign 

Program change details January-February 2025 

Cart hanger Reminder that own cans will no longer be 
accepted after February 1, 2025, for 
customers who put out extra cans/bags. 

January 2025 

Cart hanger Explanation of why cart/bags were not 
collected 

February 2025 forward 

 
Elimination of Customer-Owned Cans Roll-Out 

1. Beginning January 1, 2025 

a. Residential customers will be educated on the new program rules which go into effect 

February 1, 2025. 

b. Customers may call in for one (1) additional bundled cart or to exchange to a larger cart, at 

no charge. 

c. Customers may rent up to four additional organics carts for a total of 6 organics carts. 

d. Program basics: 

i. Owner organics cans will continue to be collected until January 31, 2025 

ii. ALL customers who set out owner cans will have a cart hanger left with information on 

the new program EVERY TIME THE OWNER CANS ARE EMPTIED in January 2025. 

1. The following documentation will be collected from January 1-January 31, 2025 

every time a customer sets out owner cans: 

a. Date 

b. Customer Name 

c. Customer Address 

d. Number of owner cans set out 

2. Effective February 1, 2025 

1. No customer owned carts or extra bags will be allowed for service 

2. MSS will remove and recycle any personal cans at the customer’s request through 

April 1, 2025 at no additional cost. 

 
  

38



FINAL REPORT 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

Submitted electronically on October 22, 2020 

submitted electronically: October 30,  2024 

Review of Marin Sanitary Service’s 
2025 Rate Application 

Attachment B

39



 

450 14th Street, Suite 350, Oakland, CA 94612    |    p  916.782.7821    |    f  916.782.7824    |    www.r3cgi.com  

October 30, 2024 
 

Dale McDonald 

Administrative Services Manager 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 

San Rafael, CA 94903 

submitted via email: dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 

 

SUBJECT: Final Report – Review of Marin Sanitary Service’s 2025 Rate Application 
 

Dear Mr. McDonald, 

 

R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) is pleased to submit this report detailing the results of our review of 

Marin Sanitary Service’s (MSS’s) 2025 rate application for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

(District).  

 

This review was conducted pursuant to R3’s engagement with the seven agencies (Agencies) served 

by MSS, including the City of San Rafael, City of Larkspur, County of Marin, Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District, Town of Ross, Town of Fairfax, and the Town of San Anselmo.  

 

This report summarizes results from our review of MSS’s 2025 indexed rate application per the 

streamlined rate setting methodology established in 2019. The methodology is described in the 

amended Exhibit B to the Franchise Agreement that the District holds with MSS. 

*               *               *               *               * 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the District. Should you have any questions regarding 

this report or need any additional information, please do not hesitate to reach out directly.  

 

Sincerely,  

Jim Howison | Sr. Managing Consultant  

R3 Consulting Group, Inc.    

925.768.7244 | jhowison@r3cgi.com 

40

http://www.r3cgi.com/


1. FINDINGS 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District | Review of MSS’s 2025 Rate Application      Page 1 of 4 

Executive Summary 

On August 30, 2024, MSS submitted its application for an increase to its solid waste rates, to be effective 
January 1, 2025. This is an indexed year rate adjustment, which primarily projects compensation due to 
MSS based on the applicable Water-Sewer-Trash CPI Index (WST). Based on our review of the rate 
application, R3 concurs with MSS’s calculated 2025 rate revenue requirement for the District of 
$3,742,906, which is $131,056 higher than the 2024 rate revenue requirement of $3,611,849. The 
corresponding adjustment to the District’s solid waste rates for 2025 is 3.63%, based on January 1, 2025 
effective date.  
 

Table 1: 2025 Rate Adjustment Summary 

  2024 2025 Dollar Change 
Percentage 

Change 
Adjustment to 

Rates 

Collector 
Operations 

2,441,216  2,553,227  112,011  4.59% 3.10% 

Garbage 
Landfilling and 
Organics 
Processing 

398,080  425,715  27,635  6.94% 0.77% 

State 
Compliance 
Database 
Subscription 

(561) 0  561  -100.00% 0.02% 

SB 1383 
Compliance 

26,521  26,761  240  0.90% 0.01% 

Profit 
Calculation 

300,773  315,516  14,743  4.90% 0.41% 

Recyclable 
Materials 
Processing 

100,299  88,407  (11,892) -11.86% -0.33% 

Interest 55,516  58,064  2,548  4.59% 0.07% 

Zero Waste 
Marin Fees 

52,740  38,496  (14,244) -27.01% -0.39% 

Franchise Fees 178,221  185,259  7,038  3.95% 0.19% 

Annual Rate 
Revenue 
Reconciliation 

47,421  37,716  (9,705) -20.47% -0.27% 

Recycling 
Property 
Insurance 

11,624  13,745  2,121  18.25% 0.06% 

Total Annual 
Rate Revenue 
Requirement 

3,611,849  3,742,906  131,056  3.63% 3.63% 

 
 

 

41



 

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District | Review of MSS’s 2025 Rate Application      Page 2 of 4 

2025 Rate Adjustment Details 

Collector Operations 
Collector Operations compensates MSS for labor, benefits, general and administrative, depreciation and 
lease, maintenance, fuel and oil. Per Exhibit B, compensation for Collector Operations is adjusted using 
the CPI index for Water and Sewer and Trash Collection. R3 used publicly available Bureau of Labor 
Statistics data to verify the calculated increase of 4.59% to Collector Operations. Per Exhibit B, the rate 
adjustment is subject to a 2.5% minimum and a 5% maximum rate cap for MSS’s collection operations. 
The result is $2,553,227 in Collector Operations for the District in 2025, which is an increase of $112,011 
compared to 2024.  

Garbage and Organics Tipping Fees 
Garbage Landfilling and Organics Processing tipping fee projections are calculated using actual tonnages 
collected from January 1 through June 30, 2024, which are then annualized to project total 2024 
tonnages. Those tonnages are then multiplied by the projected 2025 tipping fees calculated in 
accordance with Exhibit B. This is based on the actual per ton tipping fees for each waste stream 
category, or if unavailable, projected tipping fees are calculated using the current year per ton tipping fees 
escalated by the change in WST— subject to a minimum increase of 2.5% and a maximum increase of 
5.0%.  
 
R3 reviewed MSS’s projected 2024 tons and the 2025 per ton tipping fees for residential garbage, 
residential green waste/organics, commercial garbage, commercial mixed waste for processing, 
commercial food scraps, and MSS-served Agencies’ waste delivered to MSS. Per Exhibit B, R3 confirmed 
that MSS materially correctly projected tons by category using annualized actual tons for the first six 
months of the current rate year and, as actual tipping fees are unavailable, applied the 4.59% WST 
adjustment to project 2025 per ton tip fees. The result is $425,715 in Garbage and Organics Tipping fees 
for the District in 2025, which is an increase $27,635 compared to 2024.  

Database Subscription for Compliance with State Law 
The rate setting methodology allows for the recovery of additional revenues associated with costs for 
changes in law and/or new State mandates. For increased operating expenses due to State Laws, 
including AB 1826 and SB 1383, MSS has included in its rate application a line item for a compliance 
database. Zero Waste Marin has assumed responsibility for the tracking and reporting of materials. In, 
2024, MSS discontinued its subscription to Recyclist and received a refund of $561. For 2025 there is no 
remaining portion of the credit. 

Compliance with SB 1383 
MSS is requesting continued revenue in association with SB 1383 with the goal of increasing compliance 
with the State of California’s organics state mandate(s). The company will continue to provide compliance 
monitoring and inspection services, contamination monitoring, outreach and education, and reporting 
functions on behalf of the District. The total 2025 revenue recovery for these new SB 1383 compliance 
measures for MSS is $26,761, or an increase of $240 or 0.90% from 2024. 

Profit Calculation 
R3 reviewed the calculation of MSS’s profit, which is a function of total allowable operating expenses 
($3,005,703 for the District) divided by the contractually set operating ratio of 90.5% and subtracting the 
same sum, rounded to the nearest dollar. MSS’s actual profit achievement will vary depending on the 
company’s real revenues and expenses; as such, profit is not guaranteed. The result is $315,516 in 
Calculated Profit for the District in 2025, which is an increase of $14,743 compared to 2024. The increase 
is due to increases in allowable operating expenses, which were described in the previous sections of this 
report.  

42



 

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District | Review of MSS’s 2025 Rate Application      Page 3 of 4 

Recyclable Materials Processing 
A net recyclable materials processing cost is calculated each year to share the risks and rewards of 
changing recycling markets between rate payers and MSS. Per Exhibit B, the Recyclable Materials 
Processing cost is escalated by the annual change in the WST and that amount is then divided by the 
number of all tons of recyclable materials processed at Marin Recycling Center from July 1 of the prior 
rate year through June 30 of the current rate year.  
 
The recyclable materials revenue amount is calculated based on 90% of the total revenue received by the 
Marin Recycling Center for recyclable materials, which is then divided by the number recyclable material 
tons processed at Marin Recycling Center. The calculation does not include income or tons from 
recyclable materials processed for third parties or agencies that were not customers of MSS or the Marin 
Recycling Center as of December 31, 2018. For Rate Year 2025, the resulting Net Recyclable Materials 
Processing Cost Per Ton is $73.58, a decrease of $5.29 from the 2024 value of $78.87. The result is 
$88,407 in Recyclable Materials Processing costs for the District in 2025, which is a decrease of $11,892. 

Interest 
Interest is based on MSS’s actual interest from its loan amortization schedules for actual and projected 
capital expenditures for services under the Agreement as of the last base year review in 2019. This is 
increased in the same manner as Collector Operations, as described above, via WST annually.  
The result is $58,064 in interest for the District in 2025, which is an increase of $2,548 compared to 2024. 

Zero Waste Marin Fees 
Zero Waste Marin Fees are set as a pass-through as government fees and, per Exhibit B to the 
agreements, changes in such fees result in appropriate adjustments to rates to compensate MSS for 
increases or decreases in such fees. Zero Waste Marin fees included in the annual indexed rate 
applications for the MSS service area are set to be equal to the current Zero Waste Marin Fee 
assessments for the current fiscal year, with 100% of the MSS hauler fees passed through to the MSS 
Agencies, and with none of the MSS Transfer Station fees passed through to the MSS Agencies. The 
result is $38,496 in Zero Waste Marin Fees for the District in 2025, which is a decrease of $14,244 
compared to 2024. The decrease is due to grant funding obtained by Zero Waste Marin. 

Franchise Fees 
Franchise Fees are calculated by multiplying the applicable franchise fee percentage by each agency 
served by MSS by the revenues projected for each that Rate Year. The District’s Franchise Fee is 5% of 
gross revenues. The result is $185,259 in Franchise Fees for the District in 2025. Franchise Fees fund 
the costs of compliance with State laws, management and administration of the District’s Agreement with 
MSS, and compensate the District for the value of the property rights conveyed to MSS via the 
Agreement.  

Annual Rate Revenue Reconciliation 
The Rate Revenue Reconciliation item is to reconcile the projected rate revenue from the 2023 rate 
adjustment to the actual revenue collected through rates charged during the 2023 rate year. MSS 
experienced a shortfall of $37,716 in 2023 billed revenues in the District compared to the 2023 revenue 
requirement. That amount is therefore included in the 2025 rate application. 

Recycling Property Insurance 
Property insurance for recycling processing facilities has gone up across the country due to due to fire 
risks from lithium batteries. MSS has had no such claims but has received rate increases based on its risk 
profile. MSS has previously and separately briefed the Agencies on this item, and R3 is aware of the 
market circumstances surrounding it. R3 finds that this extraordinary item is supported and reasonable. 
The result is $13,745 in Recycling Property Insurance for the District in 2025, which is an increase of 
$2,121 compared to 2024.  

43



 

 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District | Review of MSS’s 2025 Rate Application      Page 4 of 4 

Survey of Comparable Rates 

Figure 1 illustrates R3's survey of solid waste rates as of October 2024 for agencies located throughout 
Marin County. These survey results are presented as an indication of the reasonableness of the resulting 
rates for 2025. For comparison purposes, agencies serviced by Marin Sanitary Services (MSS) are 
designated in green and represent the proposed pricing for 32-gallon cart, including the current rate 
increase. Other, non-MSS service agencies are designated in blue and are current pricing, though price 
increases are expected for 2025 as well. The average cost for the 30–35-gallon cart for non-MSS service 
agencies is represented by the grey line is $57.18. The 32-gallon cart is projected to cost $48.46 per 
month for the flat regions of the District. The District’s commercial rates for a 3-cubic yard bin serviced 
one time per week will be $702.07 compared to $677.48 the previous year.  
 

Figure 1: Comparison of MSS’s 2025 Rates to Other Marin County Agencies 

 

$57.18 

 $-

 $10

 $20

 $30

 $40

 $50

 $60

 $70

 $80

 $90

44



Resolution No. 2024-2444 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024-2344 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAS GALLINS VALLEY 
SANITARY DISTRICT APPROVING A THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE REVISED AND 
RESTATED EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN MARIN SANITARY 

SERVICE AND THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and Marin Sanitary Service 
have entered into a written Revised and Restated Exclusive Franchise Agreement to 
Collect, Transfer, Process, Market, and Dispose of Solid Waste, Recyclable and Organic 
Materials (“Franchise Agreement”) dated February 28, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and Marin Sanitary Service 
amended this agreement on January 1, 2019 with the First Amendment to the Revised 
and Restated Exclusive Franchise Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and Marin Sanitary Service 
further amended this agreement on February 17, 2022 with the Second Amendment to the 
Revised and Restated Exclusive Franchise Agreement to update Marin Sanitary Service 
services to comply with Senate Bill 1383, and 

WHEREAS, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and Marin Sanitary Service now 
desire a third amendment to the Franchise Agreement to update Marin Sanitary Service 
services to comply with the can color requirement for organic collection as required by 
Senate Bill 1383; and 

WHEREAS, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District has determined that such 
adjustments are proper, in the best interest of all citizens, and will promote public health, 
safety and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Board of Directors has 
reviewed and duly considered the Agenda Summary Report, and documents and other 
oral and written evidence presented. 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District determines the “Third Amendment to the Revised and Restated Exclusive 
Franchise Agreement between Marin Sanitary Service and the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District” attached hereto as "Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by reference, is 
hereby approved and shall be included as part of the Revised and Restated Exclusive 
Franchise Agreement dated February 28, 2013. The General Manager is hereby 
authorized to execute the Third Amendment, subject to final approval as to form by the 
District Counsel. 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly 
and regularly passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley  

Attachment C

45



Resolution No. 2024-2444     Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

Sanitary District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on November 21, 
2024, by the following vote of the members thereof: 

 
AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 
NOES, Members: 
ABSTAIN, Members 
ABSENT, Members: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
       Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary 
       Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 
 

APPROVED: 
 
           (seal) 
_____________________________________ 
Craig K. Murray, President Board of Directors 

 

46



EXHIBIT  A 

1 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE REVISED AND RESTATED EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT TO COLLECT, TRANSFER, PROCESS, MARKET, AND DISPOSE OF SOLID 

WASTE, RECYCLABLE AND ORGANIC MATERIALS BETWEEN MARIN SANITARY 
SERVICE AND THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT  

This THIRD AMENDMENT (this “Amendment”) to the Revised and Restated Exclusive Franchise 
Agreement to Collect, Transfer, Process, Market, and Dispose of Solid Waste, Recyclable and 
Organic Materials between the Marin Sanitary Service, Inc. (“Company” or “Collector”) and the 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) is made and entered into December ____, 2024. 

WHEREAS, District and Company entered into a written agreement on February 28, 2013 and as 
amended on January 1, 2019 and February 17, 2022 (together the “Agreement”) pursuant to 
which the Company renders Solid Waste, Recyclable and Organic Materials collection, removal, 
processing and disposal services to businesses, residents and government institutions in the 
District; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested adjustments to terms of services to protect worker 
health and safety by requiring the use of Company provided containers for general solid waste 
collection; and 

WHEREAS, the District and Company have negotiated and agree to revisions in definitions, terms 
and conditions regarding adjustments to the terms of service.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Effective Date. This Amendment shall take effect January 1, 2025. 

2. Description of Services, Section II (Residential Service), Organics, is replaced in its entirety 
as follows: 

As part of the Residential Customer rates, Collector shall provide each Residential 
Customer with up to two (2) 32, 64, or 96-gallon Compostable Materials Carts to 
be placed at the curb or Collector-approved designated Collection location next to 
their Solid Waste container for one time per week Collection by 6:00 am the day 
of service. All Residential Customers must be offered Compostable Materials 
Collection for the collection of accepted Yard Trimmings, Food Waste and Food 
Soiled Papers in the same Container.  A full list of accepted materials is available 
on the Collector’s website (marinsanitaryservice.com). Only Collector provided 
tipper carts will be allowed for the weekly collection of compostable materials.  Up 
to four (4) additional Compostable Materials Carts beyond the first two (2) shall be 
provided to a Residential Customer upon request, at a cost specified in Exhibit C. 
Compostable Materials placed in Collector-provided Carts or at the curb for 
Collection are the property of Collector.   

3. Description of Services, Section II (Residential Service), Additional Services, is replaced in its 
entirety as follows: 

Special pickups of large, hard to handle or bulky items may be requested for an 
additional fee as listed in Exhibit C.  Estimates shall be provided by Collector.  
These bulky items will be collected in non-compaction vehicles and taken to Marin 

47



EXHIBIT  A 

2 

Resource and Recovery Center (MRRC) for sorting resulting in greater re-use and 
recycling.  Extra solid waste and/or recyclable materials can also be collected for 
a fee as listed in Exhibit C in cans or bags not greater than 32 gallons when placed 
next to the regular container on collection day. 

Holiday trees will be collected curbside on the regularly-scheduled pickup day 
during the month of January.  If trees are greater than six (6) feet in length, they 
must be cut in half.  All metal stands, plastic tree bags, and ornaments must be 
removed.  Flocked trees will not be accepted. 

At the District’s request, Collector shall distribute fifteen (15) tons of compost three 
times per year, spring, summer and fall at no cost to residents.  The District shall 
provide a designated location and will provide a bunker.  Compost delivery will 
commence in the summer of 2013. 

 

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 

  

48



EXHIBIT  A 

3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment is entered into as of the date first written above. 

 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
By:  
Name:  
Title:  
Date:____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Patrick M.K. Richardson, District Counsel 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Board Secretary 
 

Marin Sanitary Service, Inc.  
 
 
By:  
Name:  
Title:   
Date:____________________________ 
 

 

 

49



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

ORDINANCE NO. 196 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1, AN ORDINANCE REGULATING SOLID 
WASTE, RECYCLABLE AND ORGANIC MATERIALS, AND THE COLLECTION, 

REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL THEREOF, TITLE 4 – GARBAGE SERVICE, AS 
AMENDED, OF THE ORDINANCE CODE OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY 

SANITARY DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, Section 236 of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) code provides 
that a charge shall be imposed and collected by the authorized refuse and recycling agent. Marin 
Sanitary Services (MSS) is the authorized refuse and recycling agent in the District. MSS has 
proposed a 3.63% increase in customer rates for calendar year 2025. Along with San Rafael, 
Larkspur, Fairfax, San Anselmo, portions of Marin County and the Town of Ross, the District 
retained R3 Consulting Group, Inc., an independent consulting firm, to review the 
appropriateness of the proposed rate increase. R3 has determined the proposed rate increase is 
appropriate per their Final Report dated October 30, 2024. Based on R3’s findings, the District 
determines that the proposed increase is based on a formula determined by MSS’s actual costs of 
service and is authorized under the Franchise Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the services and rates for the collection of solid waste, including food waste and 
recycling and resource recovery, proposed and charged by MSS are set forth in Appendix A; and 

WHEREAS, MSS will cease to remove bags or empty customer-owned carts filled with 
compostable material for residential customers in alignment with Senate Bill (SB) 1383 Short-
Lived Climate Pollutants Reduction Act, which regulates the color of waste cans and prescribes 
that haulers can only collect organics waste from their issued cans and further helps to ensure 
MSS staff are able to collect customer compostable materials without the additional risk of 
injury. 

The Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, California, 
does ordain as follows: 

Section 1.   Title 4, Chapter 1, Section 224 (a) Receptacles Provided by Collector, subsections 

(3) and (4) of the Ordinance Code of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is hereby amended

as follows:

(3) Organics: Collector shall provide each Residential Customer with up to two (2) 32,

64, or 96-gallon Compostable Materials Carts to be placed at the curb or Collector-approved 

designated Collection location next to their Solid Waste container for one time per week 

Collection by 6:00 am the day of service. All Residential Customers must be offered Compostable 

Attachment D

50



 

Materials Collection for the collection of accepted Yard Trimmings, Food Waste and Food Soiled 

Papers in the same Container.  A full list of accepted materials is available on the Collector’s 

website (marinsanitaryservice.com). Only Collector provided tipper carts will be allowed for the 

weekly collection of compostable materials.  Up to four (4) additional Compostable Materials 

Carts beyond the first two (2) shall be provided to a Residential Customer upon request, for a fee 

listed in Section 236. Compostable Materials placed in Collector-provided Carts or at the curb for 

Collection are the property of Collector. 

Collector shall provide all residential customers with one 32 or 64 gallon  cart for 

Organics (Compost Container) to be placed at the curb or Collector-approved designated 

collection location next to their Garbage container for one time per week collection by 6:00 a.m. 

the day of service. Customers may, for a fee listed in Section 236, have up to two additional 64-

gallon carts to be set out on the regularly scheduled day. Individual carts should not weigh more 

than 65 pounds. Carts are the property of the Collector. All residential customers must be offered 

Organics collection. 

(4) Additional Services: Special pickups of large, hard to handle, or bulky items may 

be requested for an additional fee listed in Section 236. Estimates shall be provided by Collector. 

These bulky items will be collected in non-compaction vehicles and taken into Marin Recovery 

Center (MRRC) for sorting resulting in greater re-use and recycling. Extra solid waste and/or 

recyclable materials can also material can be collected for a fee listed in Section 236 in cans or 

bags not greater than 32 gallons when placed next to the regular container on collection day. 

Holiday trees will be collected curbside on the regularly scheduled pickup day during the month of 

January. If trees are greater than six (6) feet in length, they must be cut in half. All metal stands, 

plastic tree bags, and ornaments must be removed. Flocked trees will not be accepted.   

Section 2.   Appendix A of Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

Ordinance Code, the schedule of maximum rates and fees effective January 1, 2025 to be imposed 

and collected by MSS, attached hereto as “Appendix A” and incorporated herein by reference, is 

hereby approved. 

 

 

51



 

All other ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is full, true, and correct copy of the Ordinance duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
of Marin County, California, at a meeting hereof held on December 19, 2024, by the following 
vote of members thereof: 

 
 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  
 

Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 

Craig K. Murray, President 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 
 
(seal) 

52



Rate increase: 3.63%
Effective date: 01/01/2025

Weekly Service Rates (Billed Quarterly)

Monthly Rate  Quarterly Rate

20 gallon cart $41.20 $123.60
32 gallon cart $48.46 $145.38
64 gallon cart $96.92 $290.76
96 gallon cart $145.38 $436.14
Low income ‐ 20 gal* cart $32.96 $98.88
Low income ‐ 32 gal* cart $38.77 $116.31
Low income ‐ 64 gal* cart $77.54 $232.62
Low income ‐ 96 gal* cart $116.30 $348.90
Additional Organics Cart Rental  $2.86 $8.58
(35 or 64 gallon cart)

Additional Split Cart Rental $2.86 $8.58
(64 or 96 gallon cart)

Additional Monthly Charges Monthly Fee Quarterly Fee

 (per cart, each way)

Distance 0' ‐ 50' $6.65 $19.95
Distance Over 50' $8.56 $25.68

Additional Service Fees per Occurrence Fee 

Return Fees ‐ Off day $25.00

Return Fees ‐ Same day $10.00

Resume Service/Late Fee $35.00

Contamination (cart) any size cart $30.00

Overload/Overweight (cart) $25.00

Extra bag garbage $15.00

Extra bag yard waste $10.00

Steam Clean (cart) $15.00

Special Collection $35.00

Special Handling (Bulky items) $30.00

Bulky item fees per item Fees Vary

Cart Strap Set‐up Admin Fee $25.00 

20 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $55.00 

32 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $60.00 

64 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $65.00 

96 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $75.00 

64 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $90.00 

96 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $100.00 

RESIDENTIAL REFUSE COLLECTION RATES

EXHIBIT C ‐ SCHEDULE OF RATES

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

*Must meet PG&E CARE program eligibility requirements.

O
N
E 
TI
M
E 
SE
R
V
IC
E 
FE
ES

R
EO

C
C
U
R
IN
G
 C
H
A
R
G
ES

Residential Service (Bundled service includes 1 landfill (garbage) cart, 1 organics cart, & 1 recycling split cart )

Flat rate

NOTE: We may not be able to accommodate any collection requests NOT at the curb due to a variety of factors including safety, accessibility, and

efficiency. Requests to be assessed and approved by Route Manager.

53



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

EXHIBIT C ‐ SCHEDULE OF RATES

COMMERCIAL REFUSE MONTHLY COLLECTION RATES
Rate increase: 3.63%

Effective date: 01/01/2025

COMMERCIAL CARTS, BINS, ROLL‐OFFS 

Garbage 1 2 3 4 5 6

20 gallon cart* $42.14 $84.28 $126.42 $168.56 $210.70 $252.84 $9.72

32 gallon cart $49.57 $99.14 $148.71 $198.28 $247.85 $297.42 $11.44

64 gallon cart $99.14 $198.28 $297.42 $396.56 $495.70 $594.84 $22.88

96 gallon cart $148.71 $297.42 $446.13 $594.84 $743.55 $892.26 $34.32

1 yard bin $346.97 $694.79 $1,041.77 $1,388.75 $1,736.48 $2,083.37 $80.07

2 yard bin $524.52 $1,012.78 $1,500.66 $1,988.46 $2,476.73 $2,964.56 $121.04

3 yard bin $702.07 $1,330.74 $1,959.51 $2,588.20 $3,216.94 $3,845.72 $162.02

4 yard bin $926.97 $1,817.18 $2,707.59 $3,597.72 $4,487.97 $5,378.49 $213.92

5 yard bin $1,151.89 $2,303.64 $3,455.69 $4,607.26 $5,759.01 $6,911.31 $265.82

6 yard bin $1,333.93 $2,528.44 $3,723.07 $4,917.58 $6,112.22 $7,306.86 $307.83

10 yard roll‐off $2,119.30 $4,018.69 $5,917.64 $7,816.77 $9,716.31 $11,615.37 $489.07

18 yard roll‐off $3,478.02 $6,517.28 $9,556.44 $12,595.76 $15,635.25 $18,674.42 $802.62

20 yard roll‐off $4,238.59 $8,037.36 $11,835.26 $15,633.55 $19,432.59 $23,230.74 $978.14

25 yard roll‐off $5,298.26 $10,046.72 $14,794.07 $19,541.94 $24,290.76 $29,038.43 $1,222.68

Organics (F2E or Compost) 1 2 3 4 5 6
Additional One 

Time Empty/On 

Call

32 gallon $23.41 $46.82 $70.23 $93.64 $117.05 $140.46 $5.40

64 gallon $46.82 $93.64 $140.46 $187.28 $234.10 $280.92 $10.80

1 yard $163.82 $327.64 $491.46 $655.28 $819.10 $982.92 $37.80

2 yard $327.64 $655.28 $982.92 $1,310.56 $1,638.20 $1,965.84 $75.61

3 yard  $491.46 $982.92 $1,474.38 $1,965.84 $2,457.30 $2,948.76 $113.41

10 yard roll‐off $1,483.51 $2,967.02 $4,450.53 $5,934.04 $7,417.55 $8,901.06 $342.35

18 yard roll‐off $2,670.32 $5,340.64 $8,010.96 $10,681.28 $13,351.60 $16,021.92 $616.23

20 yard roll‐off $2,967.02 $5,934.04 $8,901.06 $11,868.08 $14,835.10 $17,802.12 $684.70

25 yard roll‐off $3,708.78 $7,417.56 $11,126.34 $14,835.12 $18,543.90 $22,252.68 $855.87

Garbage Compactors (Per empty)

Roll‐off Compactor Tipping fee per ton  $168.19 Roll‐off Compactor Hauling charge  $341.64

Stationary FL (Per Compacted Yard) $142.47 Roll‐off Compactor  Special handling  Rates Vary 

Service Fee Details

Lock  $25.00 Monthly fee

Box rental Fees Vary Minimum Bimonthly fee

Minimum Load ML Fees Vary

Distance < 50ft $6.65 Monthly fee per cart, each way

Distance > 50ft $8.54 Monthly fee per cart, each way

On Call rate only available with approval from Route Manager

Commercial Service Fees  Fee 

Return Fee ‐ BIN $75.00 

Return Fee ‐ CART  ‐same day $10.00 

Return Fee ‐ CART  ‐off day $25.00 

Late Fee/Resume Service Fee $35.00 

Contamination (BIN) $50.00 

Contamination (CART) $30.00 

Overload/Compaction (BIN) $60.00 

Overload/Compaction (CART) $25.00 

Additional Empty/Bag Garbage  $15.00 

Additional Empty BIN Fees vary

Extra Bag Yard Waste $15.00 

Steam Clean (1‐6 yard BIN) $95.00 

Steam Clean (CART) $15.00 

Steam Clean (COMPACTOR/ROLL‐OFF) $225.00 

Lock Set‐up Admin Fee $25.00 

Lock Single Use Fee $5.00 

Lock Purchase Fee $20.00 

Lock Bar Bin Set‐up Fee $75.00 

Overweight Charge Per Ton* $205.00

20 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $55.00 
32 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $60.00 
64 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $65.00 
96 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $75.00 
64 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $90.00 
96 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $100.00 
Bin Repair/Replacement Fee** Fees vary
*Boxes exceeding 300lbs/yard

**Fees vary by size up to $1,200, not to exceed current replacement value.

NOTE: All container types and sizes may not be available at all locations depending on a variety of factors including safety, accessibility, and 

efficiency. Requests to be assessed and approved by Route Manager.

Monthly fee

O
N
E 
TI
M
E 
SE
R
V
IC
E 
FE
ES

R
EO

C
C
U
R
IN
G
 C
H
A
R
G
ES

Collections per Week Additional One 

Time Empty/On 

Call

Other Charges 

* Customers must have a sufficient level of service for the volume of material generated. Requests for 20gal carts require assessment and approval of a Route Manager.

54



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

EXHIBIT C ‐ SCHEDULE OF RATES

MULTI‐FAMILY DWELLING REFUSE MONTHLY COLLECTION RATES
Rate increase: 3.63%

Effective date: 01/01/2025

MFD CARTS, BINS, ROLL‐OFFS

Garbage 1 2 3 4 5 6

20 gallon cart* $41.19 $82.38 $123.57 $164.76 $205.95 $247.14 $9.51

32 gallon cart $48.46 $96.92 $145.38 $193.84 $242.30 $290.76 $11.18

64 gallon cart $96.92 $193.84 $290.76 $387.68 $484.60 $581.52 $22.37

96 gallon cart $145.38 $290.76 $436.14 $581.52 $726.90 $872.28 $33.55

1 yard bin $320.47 $555.20 $789.86 $1,024.59 $1,259.31 $1,494.08 $73.95

2 yard bin $524.52 $1,012.78 $1,500.66 $1,988.46 $2,476.73 $2,964.56 $121.04

3 yard bin $702.07 $1,330.74 $1,959.51 $2,588.20 $3,216.87 $3,845.54 $162.02

4 yard bin $926.97 $1,817.18 $2,707.59 $3,597.72 $4,487.97 $5,378.49 $213.92

5 yard bin $1,151.89 $2,303.64 $3,455.69 $4,607.26 $5,759.01 $6,911.31 $265.82

6 yard bin $1,333.93 $2,528.44 $3,723.07 $4,917.58 $6,112.22 $7,306.86 $307.83

10 yard roll‐off $2,119.30 $4,018.69 $5,917.64 $7,816.77 $9,716.31 $11,615.37 $489.07

18 yard roll‐off $3,478.02 $6,517.28 $9,556.44 $12,595.76 $15,635.25 $18,674.42 $802.62

20 yard roll‐off $4,238.59 $8,037.36 $11,835.26 $15,633.55 $19,432.59 $23,230.74 $978.14

25 yard roll‐off $5,298.26 $10,046.72 $14,794.07 $19,541.94 $24,290.76 $29,038.43 $1,222.68

Organics  1 2 3 4 5 6
Additional One 

Time Empty/On 

Call

Additional Organics Cart Rental $2.86 $5.72 $8.58 $11.44 $14.30 $17.16 NA
(35  gallon cart) after 4 TOTAL carts per cart per 

month

Additional Organics Cart Rental $2.86 $5.72 $8.58 $11.44 $14.30 $17.16 NA
(64 gallon cart) after 4 TOTAL carts per cart per 

month.

1 yard $163.82 $327.64 $491.46 $655.28 $819.10 $982.92 $37.80

2 yard $327.64 $655.28 $982.92 $1,310.56 $1,638.20 $1,965.84 $75.61

3 yard  $491.46 $982.92 $1,474.38 $1,965.84 $2,457.30 $2,948.76 $113.41

Garbage Compactors (Per empty)

Roll‐off Compactor Tipping fee per ton  $168.19 Roll‐off Compactor Hauling charge  $341.64

Stationary FL (Per Compacted Yard) $142.47 Roll‐off Compactor  Special handling  Rates Vary 

Service Fee Details

Lock  $25.00 Monthly fee

Box rental Fees Vary Minimum Bimonthly fee

Minimum Load ML Fees Vary

Distance < 50ft $6.65 Monthly fee per cart, each way

Distance > 50ft $8.54 Monthly fee per cart, each way

On Call rate only available with approval from Route Manager

MFD One Time Service Fees  Fee 

Return Fee ‐ BIN $75.00 

Return Fee ‐ CART  ‐same day $10.00 

Return Fee ‐ CART  ‐off day $25.00

Late Fee/Resume Service Fee $35.00 

Contamination (BIN) Per Yard $50.00 

Contamination (CART) $30.00 

Overload/Compaction (BIN) $60.00 

Overload/Compaction (CART) $25.00 

Additional Empty/Bag Garbage  $15.00 

Extra Bag Yard Waste $10.00 

Additional Empty Garbage Fees vary

Steam Clean (BIN) $95.00 

Steam Clean (CART) $15.00 

Steam Clean (COMPACTOR/ROLL‐OFF) $225.00 

Lock Set‐up Admin Fee $25.00 

Lock Single Use Fee $5.00 

Lock Purchase Fee $20.00 

Lock Bar Bin Set‐up Fee $75.00 

Overweight Charge Per Ton* $205.00

20 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $55.00 

32 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $60.00 

64 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $65.00 

96 Gal Cart Replacement Fee $75.00 

64 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $90.00 

96 Gal Split Cart Replacement Fee $100.00 

Bin Repair/Replacement Fee**
Fees vary by size 

up to $1,200

*Boxes exceeding 300lbs/yard

**Fees vary by size not to exceed current replacement value.

NOTE: All container types and sizes may not be available depending on a variety of factors including safety, accessibility, and efficiency. Requests to be assessed and approved by 

Route Manager.

NOTE: Minimum service level is 32 gallons per unit or equivalent volume. Decrease to 20 gallon per unit is subject to company review and approval.

NOTE: Up to four (4) Organics carts provided at no additional charge.  Additional carts may be rented for a nominal monthly fee.

R
EO

C
C

U
R

IN
G

 C
H

AR
G

ES

Collections per Week Additional One 

Time Empty/On 

Call

Other Charges 

O
N

E 
TI

M
E 

SE
R

VI
C

E 
FE

ES

Monthly fee

55



 

 
 

 

11/21/2024 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5.1 

56



 

 
 

 

11/21/2024 
 

SOLAR PROJECT UPDATE 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM  5.2 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\SideLetter3\ASR Vacation Cash Out Side Letter.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: November 21, 2024 

Re: Consider adoption of Side Letter of Agreement Between Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District and Operating Engineers Local No. 3 Amending Vacation Cash 
Out to Incorporate Irrevocable Election Limitation 

Item Type:   Consent    Action      X  Information      X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt Side Letter of Agreement No. 3 to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between Las 
Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (District) and Operating Engineers Local No. 3 (OE3) amending 
Section 15.3, Vacation Cash Out, to incorporate language on irrevocable election of vacation cash 
out. 
 
BACKGROUND   
The District became aware of an IRS requirement that vacation cash out accrual is considered a 
taxable benefit based on the “constructive receipt” principal at the time the accrual is earned.   
 
Constructive Receipt is an IRS principle that taxes income once it is made "available" to an 
individual, even if they do not directly access it. When an employee is given an option to cash out 
vacation time, the IRS considers this as "constructively received" income, meaning the employee 
is liable for taxes on that amount when the option is available, not necessarily when it is actually 
paid. 
 
The IRS generally avoids imposing constructive receipt if a cash-out option has strict limitations, 
such as requiring an irrevocable election by December 31st of the year before payment and 
limiting cash-out to the amount of leave accrued in the following year. This structured approach 
prevents tax liability from accruing until the designated cash-out period, reducing the risk of audit 
penalties. 
 
To avoid having to withhold and report taxes on unused accrued vacation in a calendar year, the 
District asked the union if it would support modifying Section 15.3, Vacation Cash Out, of the 
MOU between the District and OE3. By incorporating limitations on vacation cash-out, the IRS 
constructive receipt principle will not apply, and taxes will not be withheld until the vacation leave 
is cashed out or used. 
 
 
 
  
 

Item Number______6________ 

GM Review   _______CP_______ 

67

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\SideLetter3\ASR Vacation Cash Out Side Letter.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
The Labor Management Committee met on August 28, 2024 to discuss the issue and the union 
brought the question to its members on October 30. The union voted to accept the irrevocable 
election for vacation cash out on November 13, 2024. 
 
Adopting the changes in the MOU side-letter allows the Irrevocable Election program to be 
implemented, reducing the administrative burden of withholding and reporting taxes on unused 
accrued vacation. The program will begin for calendar year 2025. 
 
Not accepting the proposed change would result in vacation accrual being subject to taxation per 
applicable Federal and State Payroll Tax Law. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
The Board adopted Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the District and OE3, 
executed September 18, 2023, remains in effect through June 30, 2026. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact. A slight increase in payroll administration processing time will be required if the 
proposed changes are not adopted. 
 
 
Attachment: 
1. Side Letter of Agreement No. 3 Between LGVSD and OE3 
  
 
 

68



69



70



 

 
 

 

11/21/2024 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  
 

NITZBERG 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, McInnis 
Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet Management Ad Hoc 
Committee, SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA, 
Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  McInnis 
Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Development Ad Hoc 
Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7 

71



72



73



74



75



76



                                                                                  AGENDA: ITEM 8A 
                                                                                  DATE: November 21, 2024            

REVISED 09062023 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER CONFERENCE/ 

 MEETING/WEBINAR ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

 

Board Members to register for Webinars and Meetings   

                       YES  NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference only:         

 

Board Directors to make their own Hotel Reservations and book their own 

transportation including airfare, taxi and/or shuttles. 

   

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

77



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\11212024\8B Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

11/21/2024 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 8B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92


	Agenda 11212024
	1 Public Comment
	2 Closed Session
	3A Board Minutes 11072024
	3B Warrant List 09252024 to 11112024
	3C Board Compensation October 2024
	3D Murray Casa Winter Conference request
	3E January 2025 Board Meeting Schedule Modification
	4 MSS Amendment and Rate 2025 Resolution 2024-2344 and Set Public Hearing
	Attachment A - MSS Combined Rate Calculation 2025.pdf
	2025 Rate App Cover Letter
	Att A - MSS Combined Rate Calculation 2025
	Customer Owned Can Memo- LGVSD
	Exhibit B- Customer Owned Cans

	Attachment D Ordinance 196 Garbage Rate Adjustment 2025 and Title 4 Chapter 1 Revision and Exhibit C.pdf
	Attachment D Ordinance 196 Garbage Rate Adjustment 2025 and Title 4 Chapter 1 Revision DRAFT
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE

	Attachment D -Ordinance 196 Exhibit C Schedule of Rates


	5.1 General Manager Report
	5.2 Solar Project Update
	5.3 Engineering Department Report
	5.4 Operations Department Report
	6 Vacation Cash Out Side Letter
	7 Board Member Reports
	7.2 Murray Other Reports
	8A Board Member Meeting-Conference Attendance Request 2024
	8B Board Agenda Item Requests
	9 Various Industry Articles



